
 

 
 

 
 

SOLANA 
BEACH 
SCHOOL DISTRICT  

 
 

309 N. Rios Avenue 
Solana Beach, CA 92075 

(858) 794-7104 
www.sbsd.k12.ca.us 

 
 
Independent Citizens’ Oversight 

Committee (ICOC) Members 
 

Michael Casey  
Jill Epstein 

Laurel Graziano 
Katherine Kousser 

Laura Lemos 
Michelle Sahagian 

 
Board of Education 

 
Julie Union 

President 
Debra H. Schade, Ph.D 

Vice President 
Gaylin Allbaugh 

Clerk 
Vicki F. King, Esquire 

Member 
Dana King 

Member 
 

Superintendent 
Jodee Brentlinger 

 
 

SOLANA BEACH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

Measure	JJ	
Independent	Citizens’	Oversight		

Committee	Meeting	
March 25, 2020 

 
 Solana Beach School District, Telephonic/Video Conference*       6:00 p.m. 
  

   

 

Welcome to the meeting of the Independent Citizens’ Oversight 
Committee, ICOC, of the Solana Beach School District. 
 
Public Inspection of Documents 
In compliance with Government Code 54957.5, agenda-related 
documents that have been distributed to the ICOC less than 72 
hours prior to the meeting are available for inspection at the Solana 
Beach School District, 309 North Rios Avenue, Solana Beach. 
 
Hearing of the Public 
Persons wishing to address the ICOC on any item except personnel 
are invited to do so at this time.  In the interest of time and order, 
presentations from the public are limited to three minutes per person, 
per topic.  If you wish to speak, complete a card and present it to the 
ICOC Secretary prior to the start of the meeting.  When the ICOC 
President invites you to the podium, please state your name, and/or 
organization before making your presentation.   
 
In accordance with the Brown Act, unless an item has been placed on 
the published agenda, there shall be no action taken. The ICOC may 
(1) acknowledge receipt of the information, (2) refer to staff for further 
study; or, (3) refer the matter to the next agenda. 
 
*The Governor has declared a State of Emergency to exist in 
California as a result of the threat of COVID-19 (aka the 
“Coronavirus”). The Governor issued Executive Order N-25-20, 
which directs Californians to follow public health directives including 
canceling large gatherings. The Executive Order also allows local 
legislative bodies to hold meetings via conference/video calls while 
still satisfying state transparency requirements. The Governor has 
also issued Executive Order N-33-20, prohibiting people from leaving 
their homes or places of residence except to access necessary 
supplies and services or to engage in specified critical infrastructure 
employment. 
 
The Public’s health and well-being are the top priority for the Board 
of Education (“Board”) of the Solana Beach School District (“District”) 
and you are urged to take all appropriate health and safety 
precautions. To facilitate this process, the meeting of the Board will 
be held via telephonic/video conference. 



Note: The meeting is being held by telephonic/video conference 
means and will be made accessible to members of the public 
seeking to attend and to address the Board solely through the links 
provided, except that members of the public seeking to attend and to 
address the Board who require reasonable accommodations to 
access the meeting, based on disability or other reasons, should 
contact facilities@sbsd.net or 858-794-7130 at least six (6) hours in 
advance of a special meeting to make arrangements for such 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
Cell Phones 
As a courtesy to all meeting attendees, please set cellular phones to 
silent mode and engage in conversations outside the meeting room. 
 
Assistance with Meeting 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and AB-3035, 
if you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the Executive Director of Capital Programs and Facilities at 
(858) 794-7130 at least 24 hours prior to the start of the meeting to 
enable the District to make reasonable arrangements. 

 
 



 

Solana Beach School District        ICOC Agenda • 03/25/20 • Page 1 

 
 

Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee 
 Meeting Agenda 

March 25, 2020 
 

Solana Beach School District, Telephonic/Video Conference                                                     6:00 p.m. 
 

 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and AB-3035, if you require special assistance to participate 
in this meeting, please contact the Executive Director of Capital Programs and Technology at  
(858) 794-7130 at least 24 hours prior to the start of the meeting to enable the District to make reasonable 
arrangements. 
 
The Regularly Scheduled Meeting of the Independent Citizens’ Oversight 
Committee of the Solana Beach School District begins at 6:00 p.m. in the 
Media Center of Solana Santa Fe School. 

 
 

 
  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
WELCOME  

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

 
3. ROLL CALL .....................................................................................................   

 
 
Mr. Casey 

   Ms. Epstein 
   Ms. Graziano 
   Ms. Kousser 
   Ms. Lemos 
   Ms. Sahagian 
   Vacant 
  

 
 

                  
 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA ....................................................................................  1-2 

 
 
Motion/Second 

    

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: January 15, 2020, regular committee meeting ..……. 3-4 
 
Motion/Second 

HEARING OF THE PUBLIC   

6. HEARING OF THE PUBLIC   

 It is at this time that anyone wishing to speak regarding an item on the agenda 
or other topic is given an opportunity to do so.  In the interest of time and 
order, presentations from the public may be limited to three minutes per 
person, per topic.  If you wish to speak, complete a card and present it to the 
ICOC Secretary prior to the start of the meeting.  When the ICOC President 
invites you to the podium, please state your name and/or organization before 
making your presentation. In accordance with the Brown Act, unless an item 
has been placed on the published agenda, there shall be no action taken.  The 
ICOC may: 1) acknowledge receipt of the information; 2) refer to staff for 
further study; or 3) refer the matter to the next agenda. If a person is unable 
to attend meeting, please email public comments to facilities@sbsd.net. 
 
 
 

 

 



Solana Beach School District ICOC Agenda • 03/25/20 • Page 2 

Link to Public ICOC Meeting:  https://zoom.us/j/284929022 
Or iPhone one-tap: 
US: +16699009128,,284929022# or +13462487799,,284929022# 
Or Telephone: 
Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
US: +1 669 900 9128 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 
646 558 8656 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 301 715 8592 
Webinar ID: 284 929 022 
International numbers available: https://zoom.us/u/abprsmMLTV 

Link to Public Comment Page: www.sbsd.k12.ca.us/icoc-comment [active 
between 5:30 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. day of meeting] 

ACTION ITEMS 

7. ACTION ITEMS

A. Acceptance of the 2018-19 Measure JJ Audit Report by Christy White,
Inc…………………………………………………………………………….. 5-28 Motion/Second

B. Review and approval of the 2018-19 Annual Report by Solana Beach
School District Independent Citizens’ Oversight Sub-Committee ……. 29-73 Motion/Second

C. Review and approval of the 2018-19 Annual Report presentation to
the Solana Beach School District Board of Education by the
Independent Citizens’ Oversight Sub-Committee ……………………… 74-90 Motion/Second

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

8. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Information on the Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee internal
business …………………………………………………………………….… 91 

B. Presentation of the Measure JJ Capital Programs projects and
timeline ……………………………………………………………………….. 92-94

C. Presentation of the Measure JJ financial reports ………………………. 95-103

ADJOURNMENT 
9. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING………………………………………………………….. Motion/Second



Solana Beach School District ICOC Minutes • 09/18/19 • Page 3 

 

Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee 
 Meeting Minutes 

January 15, 2020 Solana Beach School District, Carmel Creek School 
6:00 p.m.  4210 Carmel Center Road, San Diego, CA 92130   

CALL TO ORDER The regular meeting of the Solana Beach School District Independent 
Citizens’ Oversight Committee was called to order by Committee President, 
Michael Casey, at 6:20 p.m.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Ms. Lisa Davis led members and guests in the Pledge of Allegiance 

ROLL CALL Members Present (6) 
Mr. Michael Casey
Ms. Jill Epstein (departed 7:32 p.m.)
Ms. Laurel Graziano
Mr. Dana King
Ms. Katherine Kousser
Ms. Michelle Sahagian (arrived 6:26 p.m.)
Members Absent (1)
Ms. Laura Lemos

APPROVAL OF AGENDA Motion to Approve Agenda 
Motion     Epstein
Second    Graziano

Unanimous (5)
Casey - Aye; Epstein – Aye; Graziano – Aye; King – Aye; Kousser –Aye; 
Sahagian – Absent for motion 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES Motion to Approve Minutes of September 18, 2019, Regular Committee 
Meeting  
Motion     Kousser
Second    Graziano 

        Unanimous (5) 
Casey - Aye; Epstein – Aye; Graziano – Aye; King – Aye; Kousser –Aye; 
Sahagian – Absent for motion 

INTRODUCTIONS Committee members and Solana Beach School District staff were 
introduced. 

HEARING OF THE PUBLIC There were no public comments regarding open session items.

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS  7A.    Ms. Caroline Brown presented on the Measure JJ financial reports.

7B.   Ms. Caroline Brown presented on the Measure JJ program projects 
and timelines. 

7C.    Mr. Michael Casey led the committee in discussing Internal Business.
ICOC Sub-Committees were confirmed as follows:
Fiscal Committee:  
Ms. Kousser, Ms. Sahagian 
Program Committee:  
Mr. Casey, Ms. Lemos, and Mr. King 
Annual Report Committee:  
Mr. Casey, Ms. Graziano, and Ms. Kousser 



 

Solana Beach School District        ICOC Minutes • 09/18/19 • Page 4 
 

 7D.    Mr. Michael Casey and Ms. Caroline Brown presented information 
regarding soliciting Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee (ICOC) 
members for terms expiring in June 2020. 

 Current ICOC position openings identified as: 
          Taxpayers’ Organization Representative 
          PTA/PTO or School Site Council Representative 
          Parent/Guardian Representative 
  
 7E.    Superintendent Jodee Brentlinger presented information on the 

California Voting Rights Act (CVRA) and its relationship to Measure JJ 
projects and future bond measures.  

  
 7F.    Ms. Caroline Brown presented information on California Assembly Bill 

48 
  
 7G.    Ms. Lisa Davis presented information on the status of the 2018-2019 

fiscal year Measure JJ audit report by Christy White Inc (AKA Christy White 
Associates) 

  
ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to come before the Committee, there was a 

motion to adjourn at 7:33 p.m. 
 Motion    Kousser 
 Second   Graziano 
                 Unanimous (5) 
 Casey - Aye; Graziano – Aye; King – Aye; Kousser –Aye; Sahagian – Aye; 

Epstein (Absent for motion) 
  
Submitted by: Ellis Webster 

 
Approval: Committee Action on March 25, 2020 
  
  
  
  

 



Acceptance of the 2018-19 fiscal year Measure JJ Audit Report by Christy White,
Inc.

ITEM:

The annual audit report for the 2018-19 fiscal year, prepared and presented by the District’s independent
auditors, Christy White, Inc., is presented for acceptance.

Attachment: Measure JJ Bond Building Fund of Solana Beach School District Audit Report - June 30, 2019

DESCRIPTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

It is recommended that the Committee accept the 2018-19 fiscal year Measure JJ Audit Report by Christy
White Inc.

RECOMMENDATION:

MEETING DATE:

5056

3/25/2020

AGENDA ITEM: 7A

Action
Consent
First Reading
Information
Presentation
Public Hearing
Roll Call Vote Required
Report

MOVED BY:  _____________________________ SECONDED BY:  _____________________________

5



6





















6





















6







Review and approval of the 2018-19 Annual Report authored by the Solana Beach
School District Independent Citizens’ Oversight Sub-Committee

ITEM:

The Measure JJ Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee Annual Report was authored by three of the
seven Committee members. The report includes information pertaining to the composition of the
Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee (ICOC), the role of an ICOC member, annual activities, and a
financial report covering activity for the period ending June 30, 2019.

Attachment: Measure JJ Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee 2018-19 Annual Report

DESCRIPTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

It is recommended that the Committee review and approve the 2018-19 Annual Report authored by the
Solana Beach School District Independent Citizens’ Oversight Sub-Committee.

RECOMMENDATION:

MEETING DATE:

5057

3/25/2020

AGENDA ITEM: 7B

Action
Consent
First Reading
Information
Presentation
Public Hearing
Roll Call Vote Required
Report

MOVED BY:  _____________________________ SECONDED BY:  _____________________________



Solana Beach School District 
�� 

Measure JJ Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee 
2018-2019 Annual Report 

03/25/2020 

Solana Beach School District 
309 North Rios Ave. 

Solana Beach, CA  92075 
(858)794-7100

http://www.sbsd.net 



Solana Beach School District �� 

Solana Beach School District Superintendent and Board of Education, 

The Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee (ICOC) of the Solana Beach School District is 
pleased to present our second annual report. The 2019 Annual report covers activity for the 
period ending June 30, 2019.  

Building on the commitment from the voters in November 2016, the District has authority to 
issue $105,000,000 in general obligation bonds. In spring 2017, the District issued $48,780,000 
in general obligation bonds for Measure JJ projects. In spring 2019, the District issued 
$54,750,000 in general obligation bonds for Measure JJ projects. The cost of issuance for 
expenditures through June 2019 was $1,470,000. 

The ICOC wishes to thank the District staff and project management team for their support, 
their detailed updates and transparency of information, not only to the Committee, but also to 
the public.  

We welcome your questions and comments. You will find ICOC members’ e-mail addresses 
within this report.  

For more information about Measure JJ and the ICOC, please visit: 
https://www.sbsd.k12.ca.us/Page/7765 

Sincerely, 

Michael Casey  
President, Solana Beach School District Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee 



Solana Beach School District �� 

INTRODUCTION 

Measure JJ is a $105 million bond initiative approved by over 55% of District voters in 
November 2016. The Measure JJ Bond Measure stated that Measure JJ is to "repair and 
upgrade aging, outdated classrooms, science labs, libraries, and school buildings; restore 
deteriorating roofs, plumbing, and electrical systems; improve student safety and campus 
security; and, provide access to education, facilities, science, and technology needed to prepare 
for high school, college, and careers, and qualify for State grants, shall the Solana Beach School 
District issue $105,000,000 in bonds at legal interest rates, annual audits, a citizen’s oversight 
committee, and NO money for administrators’ salaries.” 
See “Full Text of Measure” in Exhibit A.  

Measure JJ was passed under the rules of California Proposition 39 (passed in November 2000). 
California Assembly Bill 1908 (executed July 2000) required school districts that passed 
Proposition 39 bonds appoint an Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee (ICOC) “to ensure 
that funds are spent only on school and classroom improvement and for no other purpose.” 

For additional information about the ICOC and Measure JJ projects, visit the ICOC page at 
www.sbsd.net/ICOC. 



Solana Beach School District �� 

INDEPENDENT CITIZENS’ OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (ICOC) 

Members of the ICOC listed below were appointed by the District's Board of Trustees on May 7, 
2019 for terms that end in March 2020 and 2021. ICOC officers were elected at the May 15, 
2019 ICOC meeting. Members are selected to serve 1 or 2 year terms and not more than 3 
consecutive terms 

Current Committee Member Roster 
Michael Casey, Senior Citizens’ Organization Representative michaelcasey@sbsd.k12.ca.us 
Jill Epstein, Parent of Enrolled SBSD Student Representative jillepstein@sbsd.k12.ca.us 
Laurel Graziano, Business Community Representative laurelgraziano@sbsd.k12.ca.us 
Katherine Kousser, Parent-Teacher Organization Representative katekousser@sbsd.k12.ca.us 
Laura Lemos, Community At-Large Representative lauralemos@sbsd.k12.ca.us 
Michelle Sahagian, Community At-Large Representative michellesahagian@sbsd.k12.ca.us 
Vacancy created 2/27/2020, Taxpayer Association Representative 

To fulfill its duty, the ICOC will: 
• Understand the District’s priority setting process for Measure JJ projects.
• Compare the initiative’s language with the District’s project plans to verify compliance

with voter approved Measure JJ improvements. �
• Build relationships with District representatives and verify the appropriateness of bond

expenditures. �
• Ensure that the information is transparent and open to the public.
• Review the annual independent performance and financial audit of Measure JJ funds. �
• Remain current on all matters pertaining to the implementation of the Measure JJ

projects. �

Solana Beach School District Board of Education 
Julie Union, President 
Debra H. Schade, Ph.D., Vice-President 
Gaylin Allbaugh, Clerk 
Dana King, Member 
Vicki King, Esquire, Member 

District Superintendent 
Jodee Brentlinger 



Solana Beach School District �� 

ROLE OF THE ICOC 
The ICOC provides only after-the-fact review and monitoring of how the District spends 
bond funds. The ICOC does not have the authority to approve or determine how the bonds 
funds are spent, the rate of taxes collected, bond financing, or the contracting process 
(requirements definition, contract modeling and strategy, bid solicitation, contractor or 
consultant selection, contract negotiations, authorizing contract changes, etc.).  

The ICOC is required to advise the public on the District’s compliance with the requirements 
of Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) of the California Constitution, including:  
• Expenditure of bond funds only for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or

replacement of school facilities; �
• Prohibiting the expenditure of bond funds for any teacher or administrative salaries or

other school operating expenses; �
• Requiring annual independent performance audits to ensure that bond funds have been

expended only on the specific projects listed; and �
• Requiring annual independent financial audits of the proceeds from the sale of the

bonds until all those proceeds have been expended for the school facilities projects.

INDEPENDENT PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL AUDIT 
California Senate Bill 1473 (SB 1473), signed September 22, 2010, requires that the financial 
and performance audits required by Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(c) of the California 
Constitution for bond funds approved under Proposition 39 be conducted in accordance 
with the Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS), also known as the 
Yellow Book, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. �The required 
independent performance audit and independent financial audit for Measure JJ was 
conducted by CHRISTY WHITE, INC., (Independent Auditor) for the year ending June 30, 
2019. The complete report is included as EXHIBIT C. The report included no findings of 
noncompliance by the Independent Auditor for the use of Measure JJ bond funds during the 
review period. This report and all prior audit reports are available on the District’s Measure 
JJ page at http://www.sbsd.net/ICOC. ��
�

� �



Solana Beach School District     

 
34 

ICOC AUDIT REVIEW  
California Senate Bill 581 (SB 581), signed August 12, 2013, requires that independent 
performance and financial audits for the preceding year be conducted and submitted to the 
citizens’ oversight committee no later than March 31 of each year for its review. SB 581 also 
requires that the District provide the ICOC with responses, within three months, to any 
finding, recommendation, or concern addressed in the annual independent performance 
and financial audits.  
 
The ICOC held a meeting on March 25, 2020, to receive and accept the 2018-19 Measure JJ 
Annual Audit report and ask questions of the Independent Auditor’s representative. On the 
basis of this review, the ICOC accepted the Independent Auditor’s report which concluded 
that the District complied with the requirements of Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) of the 
California Constitution as it pertains to Measure JJ.  
 
Key statements from the audit: 
 
“We tested approximately $10.2 million of the current year expenditures (approximately 
93%) for validity, allowability and accuracy and concluded that the sampled expenditures 
were in compliance with the terms of Measure JJ ballot language, the district approved 
facilities plan and applicable state laws and regulations.” 
 
“There were no personnel costs charged to the Measure JJ Bond Building Fund during the 
year ended June 30, 2019” 
 
“All change orders appear to be properly reviewed and approved by management and the 
governing board in accordance with District policy.” 
 
“We found that the District successfully compiled an Independent Citizen’s Oversight 
Committee with and active member from each of the required representations. No members 
of the citizen’s bond oversight committee are also employees, official, vendor or consultant 
of the District” 
 
“There were no findings or recommendations related to the financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2019” 
 
“There were no findings or recommendations related to the local school construction bonds 
for the year ended June 30, 2019” 

 
A SUMMARY OF THE ICOC ANNUAL ACTIVITIES 

At the May 15, 2019 regularly scheduled Board meeting, the Board of Education selected 
seven candidates to serve on the Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee. On June 24, 
2019 officers were elected for the following positions: President, Vice President, and 
Secretary. The committee was briefed on rules of the Brown Act and took actions to set a 
schedule for future meetings. 

Ellis Webster
35

Ellis Webster


Ellis Webster




Solana Beach School District   35 

The meeting dates are available on the District website: http://www.sbsd.net/ICOC. 

At each of the ICOC meetings, District staff present the financial and construction status of 
completed, on-going, and planned projects. Potential challenges and other facets that could 
impact project JJ are discussed. 

Measure JJ Bond Projects 

The following table summarizes the bond projects by campus. Measure JJ bond funds are being 
used to implement the District’s Long-Range Facilities Master Plan Goals. The projects listed in 
the bond measure are comprehensive. However, it is possible that not all projects will be 
undertaken. In 2018, the District, in collaboration with San Dieguito Union High School District, 
won the 2018 Regional golden Watchdog Award from the San Diego County Taxpayers 
Association for collaboration on interim housing at Earl Warren during the construction of 
Skyline School. The classroom building, administration, and blacktop play area of Skyline were 
constructed in 2017-18. In 2018-19, the kindergarten building, theater, service kitchen, and 
fields were completed. 

Measure JJ 

* 
School Planned 

Expenses 

Expended 
Through 

6/30/2019 

% Completion 
6/30/19 Notes 

1 

Skyline 45,000,000 98% 100% 

Notice of 
Completion; 

September 2019 
Financials final 
January 2020 

1 Earl Warren Interim 
Campus 800,000 100% 100% Closed 

1 
Solana Highlands 8,500,000 100% 100% Closed 

1 Solana Pacific - 
Solar 1,003,054 100% 100% Closed 

2 Solana Vista 35,000,000 1.5% 6% Open 
1 Shade Structure Included Above 100% 100% Closed 
2 Solana Santa Fe 9,918,763 <1% <1% Open 
1 Shade Structure Included Above 100% 100% Closed 
2 Carmel Creek 2,666,000 0% 0% Open 
2 Solana Pacific - 

 Modernization 1,662,946 0% 0% Open 

TOTAL** 104,550,763 

* Issuance Number
** Planned Expenses Exceeds Measure 

 JJ Funds Available 

Ellis Webster
36

Ellis Webster




Solana Beach School District 36 

Economic Factors that Influence the Cost of School Construction 
Following the issuance of the bonds in November 2016 and through June 2019 the cost of 
school construction has continued to increase. At the October 2018 ICOC meeting, the District 
presented information on the competitive bidding process, cost of school construction, and 
cost escalation. The following factors were identified: Construction Costs; Labor Costs; 
Availability of Skilled Labor; Materials; Weather. These factors continue to impact construction 
costs and the scope of projects completed using Measure JJ funds. 

On-Going District Efforts in Support of Measure JJ 

- Superintendent's Facilities Task Force that supports the Long Range Facilities 
Planning Efforts

- Funding from other District sources in support of District projects
- Leveraging CFD Funds
- Deferred Maintenance Efforts
- Design Team meetings for Solana Vista
- Design Team meetings for Solana Santa Fe
- Community engagement for Solana Vista
- Community engagement for Solana Santa Fe 

Ellis Webster
37

Ellis Webster




Solana Beach School District �� 

A TIMELINE OF PLANNED PROJECTS 

Issuance A – Spring 2017 

Issuance B – Spring 2019 



Solana Beach School District �� 

Exhibit A 

1. ABBREVIATION OF THE MEASURE
To repair and upgrade aging, outdated classrooms, science labs, libraries, and school
buildings; restore deteriorating roofs, plumbing, and electrical systems; improve student
safety and campus security; and, provide access to education, facilities, science, and
technology needed to prepare for high school, college, and careers, and qualify for State
grants, shall the Solana Beach School District issue $105,000,000 in bonds at legal
interest rates, annual audits, a citizen’s oversight committee, and NO money for
administrators’ salaries.



Solana Beach School District �� 

Exhibit B 
II. FULL TEXT OF THE MEASURE

SCHOOL FACILITIES PROJECT LIST 
Proceeds from the general obligation bonds of School Facilities Improvement District No. 
2016-1 of the Solana Beach School District (“District”) would be used to construct, renovate, 
upgrade, replace, install necessary repairs and/or replacement of school facilities, and fund 
related facilities costs, including, but not limited to, repair and replacement of lighting and 
electrical systems, heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) systems, flooring, roof, 
renewable energy generating and/or facilities (including, but not limited to solar 
energy/solar generating facilities), windows, wall systems, security, communication 
systems, shade structures, fencing, walkways, parking lots, landscaping, athletic facilities 
and handicap accessibility improvements to meet current health, safety, and instructional 
standards which will improve the overall educational experience for all students in the 
District. Such projects include, but are not limited to, reconstruction, renovation, 
modernization and construction of classrooms, libraries, computer labs, music rooms, 
roofing, playgrounds, plumbing, electrical, renewable energy (including, but not limited to 
solar energy/solar generating and/or storage facilities), conservation measures, network 
infrastructure, fields, and related projects.  

LONG-RANGE FACILITIES MASTER PLAN GOALS 
Provide modern facilities needed for core courses, and repair and upgrade/replace 
outdated classrooms:  
• Replace portable classrooms with permanent classrooms �
• Install and upgrade Security/Safety systems to meet needs for Student Safety and

Campus Security �
• Ensure safety and structural integrity of buildings for student and employee safety by

making seismic and safety upgrades and retrofits �
• Improve energy efficiency to reduce costs and energy consumption (producing

reductions on environmental impacts), through the use/installation of energy-efficient
facilities including the installation/use of LED lighting and construction/installation of
solar energy facilities �

• Upgrade and modernize District schools to provide for compliance with Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA)

• Renovate, upgrade, replace, install, and provide repairs of school site infrastructure
(Plumbing, Electrical, HVAC, Communications, and Security Networks) �

• Upgrade Landscape and Irrigation, using recycled water where and as available �
• Provide facilities for Storm Water Management �
• Provide facilities for Child Nutrition Services and Student Dining �
• Replace, update and improve access and parking facilities with the goal of reducing

traffic congestion in the vicinity of District schools



Solana Beach School District �� 

RENOVATION, MODERNIZATION AND REPAIR OF EXISTING SCHOOLS AND FACILITIES 
Skyline School  

• Redesign and reconstruct the campus including learning areas (e.g. classrooms, Media
Center, STREAM Lab, performance/multi-purpose room and office spaces) �

• Redesign and reconstruct fields, landscaping, parking and drop off/pick-up �
• Make necessary site improvements including grading, infrastructure, roads and roadway

access �
• Construct school facilities including buildings necessary for non-instructional purposes �
• Security/Safety - Security Systems, Access Control, and Surveillance Systems, Exterior

Lighting, and Fencing �
• Shade Structures �
• Play Structures �
• Playgrounds �
• Heating and Air Conditioning �
• Interior Lighting and Lighting Controls �
• Landscape, Drought Tolerant Materials, Irrigation Controls, and Recycled Water (where

and as available) �
• Child Nutrition Service Kitchens and Student Dining Areas �
�

Solana Vista � 
• Redesign and reconstruct the campus including learning areas (e.g. classrooms, Media

Center, STREAM Lab, performance/multi-purpose room, and office spaces) �
• Redesign and reconstruct fields, landscaping, parking, and drop off/pick-up �
• Make necessary site improvements including grading, infrastructure, roads, and

roadway access �
• Construct school facilities including buildings necessary for non-instructional purposes �
• Security/Safety - Security Systems, Access Control, and Surveillance Systems, Exterior

Lighting, and Fencing �
• Shade Structures �
• Play Structures �
• Playgrounds �
• Heating and Air Conditioning �
• Interior Lighting and Lighting Controls �
• Landscape, Drought Tolerant Materials, Irrigation Controls, and Recycled Water (where

and as available) �
• Child Nutrition Service Kitchens and Student Dining Areas �

Solana Highlands � 
• Modernize the main building �
• Modify ingress/egress to better control campus access �
• Remove portable classrooms �
• Replace carpet �



Solana Beach School District �� 

• Playgrounds �
• Paint interior and exterior �
• Modify building and restrooms to meet current codes such as fire alarm and ADA �
• Security/Safety - Security Systems, Access Control, Surveillance Systems, Exterior

Lighting, and Fencing �
• Shade Structures �
• Play Structures �
• Heating and Air Conditioning �
• Interior Lighting and Lighting Controls �
• Landscape, Drought Tolerant Materials, Irrigation Controls, and Recycled Water (where

and as available) �
• Child Nutrition Service Kitchens and Student Dining Areas �
�

Solana Santa Fe � 
• Modernize the main building �
• Modify ingress/egress to better control campus access �
• Replace portable classrooms with permanent �
• Replace carpet �
• Paint interior and exterior �
• Security/Safety - Security Systems, Access Control, Surveillance Systems, Exterior

Lighting and Fencing �
• Shade Structures �
• Play Structures �
• Playgrounds �
• Heating and Air Conditioning �
• Interior Lighting and Lighting Controls �
• Landscape, Drought Tolerant Materials, Irrigation Controls, and Recycled Water (where

and as available) �
• Child Nutrition Service Kitchens and Student Dining Areas �

Carmel Creek � 
• Modernize the main building �
• Modify ingress/egress to better control campus access �
• Remove portable classrooms �
• Replace carpet �
• Paint interior and exterior �
• Security/Safety - Security Systems, Access Control, Surveillance Systems, Exterior

Lighting, and Fencing �
• Shade Structures �
• Play Structures �
• Playgrounds �



Solana Beach School District �� 

• Heating and Air Conditioning �
• Interior Lighting and Lighting Controls �
• Landscape, Drought Tolerant Materials, Irrigation Controls, and Recycled Water (where

and as available) �
• Child Nutrition Service Kitchens and Student Dining Areas �

Solana Pacific 
• Child Nutrition Service Kitchens and Student Dining Areas – as may be needed expand

student service kitchen and reconfigure vendor delivery area �
• Replace carpet �
• Paint interior and exterior �
• Security/Safety - Security Systems, Access Control, Surveillance Systems, Exterior

Lighting, and Fencing �
• Shade Structures �
• Play Structures �
• Playgrounds �
• Heating and Air Conditioning �
• Interior Lighting and Lighting Controls �
• Landscape, Drought Tolerant Materials, Irrigation Controls, and Recycled Water (where

and as available) �
�

Solana Ranch 
• Expand Kindergarten play area to include grass area at west end of campus �
• Security/Safety - Security Systems, Access Control, Surveillance Systems, Exterior

Lighting and Fencing �
• Shade Structures �
• Play Structures �
• Playgrounds �
• Heating and Air Conditioning �
• Interior Lighting and Lighting Controls �
• Landscape, Drought Tolerant Materials, Irrigation Controls, and Recycled Water (where

and as available) �

ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF NEW SCHOOL ELEMENTARY TO MEET STUDENT 
NEEDS AND TO REDUCE OVERCROWDING ��
New Elementary School � 
• As may be needed to accommodate growth within the District’s attendance boundaries,

purchase land, design, and construct a comprehensive elementary school campus
(designated as “School #8”). This includes classrooms, support buildings, campus
administration facilities, and other buildings necessary for non-instructional purposes �

• Make necessary site improvements including site preparation, grading, supporting
infrastructure, roads, and roadway access �



Solana Beach School District �� 

• Pay costs of design and fees for construction of facilities �
• Pay environmental review(s) (including geotechnical reviews) and mitigation costs �
• Design, construct and install supporting facilities and infrastructure, including, but not

limited to roadways, electrical systems, plumbing, HVAC, parking, hardscape, interior
and exterior lighting, and lighting controls �

• Provide/install solar energy and/or storage facilities �
• Playground facilities and equipment
• Provide for Landscaping, including, but not limited to drought tolerant materials,

irrigation controls and use of recycled water (where and as available)

ALL DISTRICT SCHOOL SITES WHERE RENOVATION, MAJOR REPAIRS AND/OR NEW 
CONSTRUCTION TO BE UNDERTAKEN:  
• Remove and mitigate hazardous materials (asbestos, lead, PCB, mold, mildew, etc.)

where necessary. �
• Address unforeseen conditions revealed by construction/modernization such as

plumbing, or gas line breaks, dry rot, termite damage, and/or seismic structural repairs.
• Improve schools as required to comply with existing building codes and state/federal

requirements, including access requirements of the ADA. �
• Provide adequate furniture and equipment for all classrooms, and spaces to be newly

constructed or reconstructed. �
• Acquisition of any of the facilities on this School Facilities Project List through temporary

lease or lease-purchase arrangements, or execute purchase option under lease for any
of these authorized facilities. �

• Necessary site preparation/restoration in connection with renovation or remodeling,
including ingress and egress, removing, replacing, or installing irrigation, utility lines,
trees and landscaping, relocating fire access roads, and acquiring any necessary
easements, licenses, or rights of way to property. �

• If the Board of Education determines that replacement is more economical than
rehabilitation or renovation of existing classrooms/school facilities, in those particular
cases replacement/new construction will be explored/pursued. �

• Provide temporary (interim) classrooms and other school facilities as needed to
accommodate students and school functions displaced during construction, including,
but not limited to, relocation costs. This includes the costs to remove such facilities
when no longer needed and the costs to restore the site and utility systems after
removal. �



Solana Beach School District �� 

Project Costs for Furnishings and Equipment 
Project Costs for furnishings and equipment for some or all of the within-identified District 
campuses may include, but are not limited to, some or all of the following: security, safety 
and communication systems and equipment, desks and tables; window and floor coverings 
(including tiles and carpeting); media recording, distribution and presentation equipment, 
including, but not limited to, audio systems, kitchen equipment, improvements and 
furnishings, fire alarm, security; science laboratory equipment; and/or other infrastructure 
equipment and systems.  

Project costs for the above-referenced projects may include installation costs, engineering 
and design costs, project management/construction management costs, warranty costs, 
master facilities planning, state or local costs or expenses involving design, planning, site 
and facilities development costs and charges, environmental review(s) and proceedings, 
necessary supporting infrastructure costs, relocation costs and expenses, necessary 
contingency plans and related costs construction and completion of the aforementioned 
facilities projects, direct legal costs and related costs. Project costs may also include the 
payment or prepayment of existing or future lease payments and/or interim financing costs 
for lease of authorized facilities, property or buildings, prepayment of lease obligations for 
facilities purposes (including temporary classroom facilities) and payment of costs and 
expenses for interim financing of authorized facilities (including, but not limited to, 
financing delivery costs). Proceeds of the bonds may be used to pay or reimburse the 
District for the cost of District staff when performing work on, or necessary and incidental 
to, bond projects. Allowable project costs also include: costs of issuing the bonds or other 
securities (as authorized under California law), informational distribution costs and election 
costs authorized under State law.  

This School Facilities Project List describes the specific facilities and capital projects the 
District may finance with proceeds of the Bonds. Listed projects will be completed as 
needed at a particular school site according to Board-established priorities, and the order in 
which such projects appear on this School Facilities Project List is not an indication of 
priority for funding or completion. The final cost of each project will be determined as plans 
are finalized, construction bids are awarded, and projects are completed. Certain 
construction funds expected from non- bond sources, including State grant funds for eligible 
projects, have not yet been secured. Until all project costs and funding sources are known, 
the Board of Education cannot determine the amount of bond proceeds available to be 
allocated for each project, nor guarantee that the bonds will provide sufficient funds to 
allow completion of all listed projects. Completion of some projects may be subject to 
further government approvals by State officials and boards, to local environmental review, 
and to input from the public. For these reasons, inclusion of a project on the Bond Project 
List is not a guarantee that the project will be funded or completed.  



Solana Beach School District �� 

In preparing the foregoing list, the Board of Education of the Solana Beach School District has 
evaluated safety, class size and information technology needs.  

The District will also aggressively pursue funds from the State of California to complete 
facilities projects.  
No Administrator Salaries. Proceeds from the sale of Bonds authorized by this proposition 
shall be used only for the construction, acquisition, repair, renovation, rehabilitation, or 
replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities, 
or the lease of real property for school facilities as identified herein, and not for any other 
purpose, including teacher and non-construction related administrator salaries and other 
operating expenses.  

BOND PROPOSITION OF SCHOOL FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2016-1 (“SFID NO. 
2016-1) OF THE�SOLANA BEACH SCHOOL DISTRICT�(November 8, 2016):  

“In order to acquire, construct and reconstruct school facilities, and provide for supporting 
infrastructure at the existing school site of the Solana Beach School District, and in so doing 
increase health, safety, welfare and educational effectiveness of classrooms for students, 
shall School Facilities Improvement District No. 2016-1 of the Solana Beach School District 
(“Improvement District”) be authorized to issue Bonds in an amount not to exceed 
$105,000,000, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities or the acquisition 
or lease of real property for schools and school facilities listed in Attachment “1” on file at 
the District office and herein incorporated, which Bonds shall be issued for a term not to 
exceed the applicable statutory maximum, at an interest rate below the legal maximum, 
and which Bonds shall be subject to the following provisions:  
. (A)  That proceeds of the Bonds shall be used only for the construction of school 

facilities and supporting infrastructure, including the furnishing and equipping of school 
facilities or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities pursuant to 
California Constitution Article XIIIA, Section 1(b)(3) and further that the proceeds of the 
Bonds shall be used only for the purposes specified in California Constitution Article 
XIIIA, Section 1(b)(3) (as amended by Proposition 39) and not for any other purpose, 
including teacher and non-construction related administrator salaries and any other 
school operating expenses. � 

. (B)  That a list of the specific school facilities projects to be funded with the proceeds of 
the Bonds is attached hereto as Attachment “1” and, based upon the adoption of this 
Resolution, this Board of Education hereby certifies that it has evaluated safety, class 
size reduction and information technology needs in developing the school facilities 
listed in Attachment “1”. � 

. (C)  That the Board of Education of the District shall conduct an annual, independent 
performance audit to insure that the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds have been 
expended only on the specific projects listed in this bond proposition. � 

. (D)  That the Board of Education of the District shall conduct an annual, independent 
financial audit of the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds until all of those proceeds 
have been expended for the school facilities projects identified herein. � 

. (E)  That the Board of Education of the District will, pursuant to the provisions of 



Solana Beach School District �� 

applicable State law, appoint a citizens’ oversight committee, and conduct annual 
independent audits (as referenced above) to assure that the Bond proceeds are spent 
only on the school, facilities and classroom improvements, projects and costs identified 
in Attachment “1” and for no other purposes. � 

Notwithstanding any statutory provision as to the maximum term of bonds issued pursuant 
to this bond measure, general obligation bonds issued pursuant to this bond measure shall 
have a maturity of not more than thirty years from the date of issuance of such bonds or 
series of bonds.  

SBSD SFID Boundary map showing exclusion of Pacific Highlands Ranch - November 2016.

115320115320

115560115560

436610436610

436860436860

436870436870

115010115010

115020115020

115030115030
115040115040

115070115070

115080115080

115090115090

115100115100

115110115110

115120115120

115150115150

115160115160

115240115240

115280115280

115330115330

115340115340

115350115350

115360115360

115370115370

115380115380

115390115390

115400115400

115410115410
115420115420

115430115430

115440115440

115450115450

115470115470

115490115490

115520115520

115540115540

115590115590

115600115600

414240414240

436910436910
413790413790

435500435500

435390435390

435340435340

435740435740

435640435640

436410436410

435750435750

436540436540

414140414140

414150414150

416040416040

416120416120

414160414160

416020416020

416030416030

416130416130

416210416210416220416220

416230416230

416240416240

416600416600

416610416610

416700416700

416710416710

416800416800

416810416810

416820416820

416890416890

416900416900 416050416050

416920416920
416930416930

417600417600

417610417610

417620417620

417640417640

417650417650

417660417660

417670417670

417680417680

418230418230

418240418240
418250418250

418260418260

435520435520

435400435400

435670435670

436000436000

436010436010

436020436020

436030436030

436050436050

436070436070 436090436090

436100436100

436120436120

436130436130

436150436150436160436160

436170436170

436200436200
436210436210

436220436220

436300436300

436310436310

436320436320

436330436330

436360436360

436400436400

436880436880

436890436890

436920436920
436930436930

436060436060

436080436080

416620416620 436140436140

435720435720

416100416100

414250414250
414260414260

414020414020

416940416940

416000416000

416910416910

416060416060

416630416630

416200416200

417690417690

115670115670

416720416720

413920413920

DEL MAR
TRAI

LS RD

ARROYO GRANDE RD

INTERSTATE
5
NB

BA
LO

UR
 D

R

CARMEL COUNTRY RD

RUBEN
ST EIN

DR

SPIND
RIFT

ST

CAM
INI

TO
SAN

TAL
UZ SU

R

G IN
GE
R
GL

EN
R D

07TH
 ST

LAGO
LIND

O

MAN
CHE

STE
R AVE

CA
MI
NIT

O MEN
DI
OLA

VISTA DE LA TIE R
RA

LA AMATI
STA

RD

SANTA FE DR

AMPHITHEATRE DR

09TH
 ST

LOMAS SANTA FE DR

HOSKA DR

JIM
MY DURANT

E BLVD

11TH ST

VIA DE LA VALLE

12TH
ST

N
RA
NC
HO

SA
NT
A
FE

RD

AU

TU
MN

GO
LD WAY

S RIOS AVE

VIA
DOS

VALLES

ALLEY

CAMINITO
SEPTIM O

RAMBLA DE LAS FLORES

ALL
EY

H

MONT
ERRA TRL

CHE
STE

RFI
ELD

 DR

VI
A 
DE
 S
AN
TA
 F
E

LOPELI A
MEADOWS

PL

SA
NT

ALUZ

VI
L
L

AGE

GRE EN N

ME
RC

AD
O 

DR

SER PEN TIN
E
D R

VAL
ENC

IA CIR

DORMOUSE RD

AR
RO
YO

HO
ND
O

PA
SE
O DE

LI
CIA

S

PIN
E NEEDLE

S
DR

CUCHARA DR

TOWNSGAT E DR

VAN

DY
KE

AVE

CAMINO
DE LAS VILLAS

PRIVATE
DRWY

08TH ST

GA
R D

E N
A
RD

C O
AS
T

BL
VD

E H ST

GRAND AVE

CAMINO DEL SUR

UNNAMED PRIVAT
E DRWY

MACKINN
ON

AVE

RUMEX LN

WARWICK AVE

ELE
GAN

TE
WA

Y

ADOBE BLUFFS DR

Z UMAQU E

VIA
GALAN

TIVERTON
R D

WINL AN

D
HI

L
LS

DR

FO
RD

AV
E

STATE
ROUTE 56 WB

ALY

SUMMIT

AVE

E L CAMINO REAL

PRIV

AT
E

DRWY

LUNETA
DR

BLACK MOUNTA
IN

WA
Y

LA SENCILLA

PR
I
V

ATE

DRWY

AV
EN
ID
A

BR
IS

A

MANGO
DR

GL
EN

MO
NT

DR

OC
EA

N VIEW AVE

DE
L

VI
NO

C T

H I
CK

OR
YH

IL
L

DR

L AZ ANJA DR

CARMEL VALLEY RD

PA
CI
FI

C

RA
NC

H
DR

WOODLAKE DR

MODENA PL

VIA
DEL

CANON

S
SIER RA

A VE

GAM AY WAY

ZAP
OST

LA
DE
RA

SARINA

GR
AN
D 
AV
E

LA
BAJADA

18TH ST

SILVERBU
SH CRE

EK
ST

TORENIA

T
RL

OCEAN ST

SO

LANA

CIR

CA
MI

NO

SAN
TA
ND

ER

DEER
CANYON

PL

LA
GO

O
NV

IEW

D
R

SAG
EBR

USH BEND WA Y

20TH ST

PA
SE
O
MO
NT
EN

ER
O

HIA
LE

AH CIR

CAMI
NITO EXQUIS

ITO

LIV
ERP

OOL
 DR

CAPE JEW E L
S
TR
L

V

IA CANYON DR

VE
RD
A
LN

RANCHO VERD
E TRL

DUB
LIN

 DR

KIL
KEN

NY
DR

MEA DOW
BRUSH

CIR

NEWCASTLE AVE

S HIGHWAY 101

19TH ST

CANYON
DR

E I ST

VIA
DE FORT

UNA

FL
IN

TW
OO

D 
WA

Y

OL
D
CA
RM
EL

VA
LL

EY
RD

VALLEY
AVE

LUGANO LN

CATHY LN

AVE DE LAS ADELSAS

MELBA RD

O
AKBRANCH

DR

S E
A

VI
EW

AVE

QUAI
L RUN

ST

RACE TRACK VIEW
DR

M ST

LA
ZA

NJ
A

PA
SS

AZUL LUNA WAY

AL
LEY

PRIVATE DRWY

CA
MI
NI
TO

SA

NT
AL
UZ

E

AVOCADO

P L

LA SEN
DI

TA

MI
MO
SA

AMERI
C A WA Y

VI
A

BE
RG
AM

O

VI
A
MA

NT
OVA

STRATFORD
CT

VIA
LA

SE ND A

VILLAGE CENTER
LOO

P
RD

VI
A 

FI
ES

TA

NEW
PARK

TER

MANGO WAY

FAIR
LEE

DR

CIRCA DEL NORTE

SANDO
WN

WAY

MIMULU
S

MERCURIO ST

TYN EB
O
UR

NE
C I

R

PL
AY

A
RI

VI
ER
A
DR

VIA VIVALDI

CORDERO RD

BL
AZ
IN
G

STA
R LN

SEDORUS
ST

HI
G H

LA
ND

CT

HIG

H
SO
CI

ET
Y

WA
Y

WOODGROVE DR

HIGHLAND DR

ALMONDWOOD WAY

KER
N

CR
ES

VIA PAN
ACEA

BRYN GLEN WAY

CARM
EL VIEW RD

HI
GH
LA
ND

DR

EL AMIG
O RD

GOING
MY WAY

MARKER RD

CA
MI

NO
 D

E 
LA

 L
UN

A

CHADAMY WAY

VIA BELFIORE

VIA CAMPESTRE

AVENI
DA PRIMA

VE
RA

INTERSTATE
5
SB

CH
AP
AL

IT
A

D R

ZUNI DR

SAN
TA ROSITA

SHEFFIELD AVE

SO
LA

NA
HI

L L
S

DRGL
EN
CR
ES
T

DR

CA
LL
E

CHRISTOPHER

CERRO
ST

CR
ES
T
DR

RU
SS
ET

LE
AF

LN

VISTA DE L

D
IO

S

BRADSHAW CT

LOS MORROS

SUNSET
POINT

W AY

SAINT ANDREWS RD

CREST
WAY

LA
ND
FA

IR

RD

VIA MONTEBELLO

SO
B R

E
LO

S

CER
RO
S

BLU
E DAWN

TRL

WINSTANLEY WA Y

CARMEL CENTER RD

ENTREKEN WAY

PRIVATEDRWY

CONDESA

DR

NOB
AVE

L
ADE

RA

L INDA

PACIFIC LN

ALLE
Y

LA
FL
EC
HA

CAMINO
DE

LA MITRA

CR
ESCENT CREEK DR

L OMA D E

CA
BA
LL
O

SEACHASE
ST

LOW

E R RIDGE RD

TILLAGE
LN

E CLIFF ST

VALLEYDALE
LN

14TH
 ST

BR
AC

ER
O 

RD

DO

UG
HIL

L

CT

RA
NCHO

VALENCIA RD

SANTA CARINA

EL SICOMORO

CAMARENA
RD

JANE ST

TORREY MEADOWS DR

EVERGREEN
D R

VI
A

C O
LM
EN
AR

RANCHO DIEGU ENO RD

TR
AI

L H
EA

D
PL

SUNSET BLUFFS WA Y

BL
UE

SH
AD

OWS
LN

EL SECRETO

TO
RR

EY
GAR

DEN
S PL

VILLA
CARDIFF

DR

AUBERGE CIR

TI
ER
RA

AL
TA

ALPI NE RIDGE RD

ROBLEY PL

CIRC O DIE
GUENO CT

NEWPORT AVE

LA
H O

UD
DR

PORTADA PL

BLAC
KH

ORSE
ROW

R I

MIN I

RD

RU
TH

LO
R 

RD

HI
LL
 S
T

S UNDANCE AVE

GR
EE

NL
AK

E
DR

R
E GAL

RD

OCEAN
FRONTALLEY

WESTMINSTER
DR

EL
TORDO

BA
VA
RI
AN

DR

TO
RR

EY
DEL

MA
R

DR

GOL
DEN LILY WAY

PRIVATE DRWY

SUN VALLEY RD

ARTESIAN
RD

BE
LT
AI

RE
LN

HEALIS PL

MUNEVAR RD

BIRMINGHAM DR

BURR
LN

BE
NC

HLEY RD

WAR

H ORSE ST

NOR
FOL

K D
R

COURT
ST

MENSHA PL

AR
TE

SI
AN

 T
RL

ALLE
Y

DONAKER ST

VANTAGE WAY

F ALL
ON C I

R

VIA
MON

TECR
ISTO

MARIN E
VIEW

AVE

OX
FO
RD

AV
E

PACIFIC
AVE

KIBBINGS RD

RANCHO SANTA FE LAK
ES

DR

HARWICK
LN

DOUG HILL

LE
GA

YE
DR

RUBENST EIN
AV E

KENM
AR

WA
Y

FAITH AVE

RANC
HO

SANTA
FE

FARMS
RD

AVENIDA FELIZ

IR
EL
AN
D
LN

VIA MIL CUMBRE
S

WA
LE
S
DR

SOLAR CIRCLE DR

VA LERIO TRL

OCEAN CREST RD

VI
A
DE

LA
S
PA
LM
AS

DE MAYO
RD

CAROL VIEW
DR

LA GRACIA

AHLRICH
AVE

AR
TE

SI
AN

RD

CAMINITO PACIFICA TRL

PED

ES
TR
IA
N-

-BIKE
PATH

FL
OR
ES

DE

OR
O

CO
RN

IS
H

DR

CA
RM

EL
MO

UNT
AIN

RD

CALLE MAYOR

S

NARDO AVE

EL APAJO

TARA NT
EL
LA

LN

HAALAND GLEN

VIA DE
SANTA

FE

WI

ND
SO
R

RD

OL
D
EL

CA
MI

NO
REAL

PEARLMAN
WA
Y

FRESCA
ST

VIA
VALLE

VERDE

CAR
OL

I
NA

RD

SANTA HIDALGA

S WILLOWSPR
ING DR

NOLBEY ST

V I
A

BE
TT
ON
A

ENCENDIDO

VIA REPO
SO

MELBA RD

VIA
LAS

L ENASSE
AB

RE
E
ZE

FA
RMS

D R

EN
TR
EK
EN

AV
E

15TH 
ST

STEVENS
AVE

AVENIDA MARA VILL
AS

LA CRESCENTA

VI
STA RANCHO CT

ENTRA D
A
DE

LUZ

E

EL MONTEVIDEO

ELMVIEW
DR

SEAGROVE CV

GRAYDON RD

LOZANA RD

SANDCASTLE DR

SAN DIEGUITO RD

CIRC
A ORIENTE

BROOKBURN DR

04TH
ST

VIA A LTA

LA GRANADA

10TH
 ST

JA K
E
VIEW

LN

AS
HL
EY

FA
LL
S

DR

CH
AC

O
CT

PARKSIDE C R
E
S

EMMA DR

RA
NC

HO
D E

L
RI
O

CARMEL KNOLLS DR

ORANADO LN

SAN
LUCAS

DR

SWORD WAY

CA
MINITO MARIA

SEA
GR
OV

E
ST

BACH ST

SOL
ANA DR

VIA AZUL

PRIMRO SE LN

05TH ST

BO
NI

TA
 D

R

LIRIO ST

POCO LAGO

FAIRE SKY

W AY

EL CAMINO REAL

ENCINITAS

BLVD

ALLEY

AL
LE
Y

SIETE
LEGUAS

DO
RI
S DR

VIA INEZ

DERBY
FARMS

RD

RANCHO SANTA FE FARMS DR

VIA
TIEMPO

EN
TR
AD

A LAZA
NJA

OLD COURSE RD

REFLECTIONS CI

R

ORIBIA
RD

HALF MILE DR

KERWOOD CT

LA GLORIETA
CAN

TO
N
RI
DG
E
TE
R

S EA
VIL

L A

GE
CI
R

CAMINITO SANTALUZ NORTE

SOLTERRA VISTA PKY

VI
A
DEL ALBA

SHER BOUR
NE

LN

13TH
ST

MONTIEN

OCEAN VALLEY LN

PACIFIC
HIGHLANDS

RANCH
PKY

BRIZ A PLACI DA

SOMERS
ET

A VE

BRIA
RCR

EST
PL

VI
A DE

LOS
ROSA

LES

PENN
Y LN

VIA
CONCEPCION

BO
QU

IT
A 

DR

PA
TH
OS

LN

VI
A

A B
E R

TU
RA

RANCHO REAL

DEL DIOS HWY

CODOR

N IZ

SAN E L
IJ

O AVE

LANSDALE DR

MAY CT

CA
LLE CAMPOSECO

DEWITT AVE

VI
ST

A
DE
L
OC

E A
NO

ALLEY

LAS
COL

INAS

SA

NT
A HEL

ENA

ACADEMY DR

CA
RM

EL
CR
EE
K

RD

NO
CH

E
TA
PA
TI
A

SAN TA

L UISA DR

LA TENISTA

RANC
HO DEL MAR TRL

LAS

MANAN AS

CH
ELTERHAM TER

HIG
H BLUFF DR

TH
E
RI
VE
R

TRL

HA
RT

FI
EL
D
AV
E

VERA ST

CALDERON
RD

PR

IVATE DRWY

LA ORILLA

BR
IC

KE
LL

IA
ST

VIA DE LA CUMBR
E

N CEDROS AVE

N
ACACIA

AVE
RI

O
RA
NC
HO

ALLEY

KINGS CR OSS
DR

AVENIDA PEREGRINA

VIVA CT

SAN
MARIO

DR

PI
CR
US

ST

AVEN IDA
DE

ACACIAS

BRI

ST
OL

RI
DG
E

TE
R

DENK LN

LA

FREMONTIA

MA
R 

SC
EN

IC
 D

R

AL
LE

Y
BO

QU
I T
A
DR

FEDERMAN LN

CO
LE

 R
AN

CH
 R

D

IDA AVE

LO
S

AR
BO
LE

S

L AKE
DR

DO
RA

D R

ALLEY
C

CAM
BRIDGE

AVE

VOYAGER CIR

ROSSINI
DR

C REST RD

LA
SO
LD

ADE
RA

LOS PINOS

OXFORD AVE

HEATHERLY LN

ROSECROFT
WAY

VILLAS

OCEAN AVE

PRIVA
TE DRW

Y

LOS BRAZOS

S
EN

DA
PA

NA
CE

A

ALLEY

INT
ERSTATE

5
SB

ON
RA MP

VI
A 
DE
 S
AN
TA
 F
E

ALLEY

VI
A

RE
CAN

TO

EXBURY CT

MONTGOMERY AVE

EDINBURG
AVE

N RIOS AVE

LAS
PALOMAS

GLASGOW AVE

ALLEY

TOP O THE MORNING WAY

HAYDN
DR

RENDEZVOUS CIR

MIRA
MONTANA

DR

GOLDEN
CYPRESS

PL

C A
ST
RO

ST

DU N

H
AM

WA
Y

GA
RD
EN

TRL

GATUN
ST

COACH LN

MA
RIPOS

A

BULRUSH
LN

S
EL

CAMINO
REAL

NORT
HERN

LIG
HTS

TORREY SANTA FE RDDENARA
RD

PORTOFINO
DR

EL MIRLO

CO
LL

IN
S
RA

N C
H

P L

SAN DIEGUITO RD

AB
IN

G
AV

E

LUZO
N

AV

E

CAMINITO LAZANJA

AR
DE

N 
DR

MC
CA
IN

LN

ST
RA

TF
OR

D 
DR

D E
VO

NS
HI

RE
DR

PEGASO ST

VIA CAZADERO

SA
N 

DI
EG

UI
TO

 D
R

GENEVIEVE ST

PA
SE

O DEL SUR

CA
ND
EL

A P L

BERRYMAN
CANYON

MOZ

AR
T
AV
E

LONG

RU
N

DR

CANTARANAS

S
VULCAN

AVE

HA
LF

 M
OO

N 
BA

Y 
DR

MA
RV

IE
W

DR

ROSA ST

LAS LUNAS

EL
C AMI

NO DEL NORTE

VIA
DE L

B RAVO

ROAN RD

ARTESIAN RD

PHILDEL ST

EL
NID

O

SUN VALLE
Y RD

EL VUELO

LAURIE
LN

WYNDHAVEN
DR

WARDEN LN

AVENIDA
CALMA

UN NAMED PRI
VATE

DRWY

ORCHID LN

EL
ZORRO

VIS TA

RIDING RIDGE

RD

N GRANADOS
AVE

RO
CK

RO
SE

NOGALES
DR

ALLEY
E

PINEWOOD ST

CARIBOU CT

MINORCA CV

EL
CAMINO

DEL
NORTE

CAM
INO

DE MONTECILLO

ST
ONE

BRI
DG

E
LN

VALLE
DE

ORO

SANTA VICTORIA

QUARTER MILE DR

BA
YW

IN
D
PT

AL
LE
Y

STATE ROUTE 56 EB

RA
NCHO VIEJO DR

PROVINCE
CT

EL
MIRAR

ECHO HILL LN

WYNGATE
PT

RUET
TE DE MER PA

RK

VI
LLA

GE RD

INTERSTATE
5 NB

ONRA
MP

PA
NT
ER
A
RD

ROXTON

CIR

MONA LN

SIENNA
CANYON

DR

CALLE RYAN

CA
MI
NI
TO

RADI
ANTE

PR
I
VA

TE
DR

WY

RE CUER DO
DR

CALLE SERENA

DA RV

IE

W
LN

DU
RA

NG
O

DR

P A
RI

VA
DR

SA
NTA

FLORENCIA

BL
UE

 S
KY

 D
R

DEL MAR HEIGHTS RD

FLOWER HILL DR

VIA GUADALUPE

KERRY LN

PEPPE RT
RE
E
LN

CAP

ST ONE D R

CIRCA DEL SURS
AN

L UCAS CT

DARK
WOO

D RD

MONTE FUEGO

EL CIELITO

TRAILSIDE RD

K

AL
AM
AT

H DR

EL

FUEGO

CA
LL
E
HE

RM
OS

A

PR IV
AT
E
DR
W
Y

GL
EN
CL
IF
F

WA
Y

SO
NOMA PL

SAN
T A

HEL
ENAPARKCT

SILVERW
IN

D
DR

CERRO DEL SUR

LANDQUIST
DR

SAN ELIJO

WHITE EMERALD DR

OVERPARK RD

STARL
I GHT

DR

N
HIGHWAY

101

FR
ED

A
L N

SANTA ALICIA

PLEIN AIRE

UNNAMED ST

DELAGE

DR

LINEA DEL
CIEL

O

INTERSTATE
5

RAMP

G
OL

DE
N

RD

RANC HO CIELO

CAMI
NO

PR
IV

AD
O

PASEO
PRIMERO

CALLE
AMBIENTE

LOS MIRLITOS

BARBARA
AVE

HIGHLAND
CV

LA
FLOR E STA

TRABERT
RANCH

RD

SAN PATRICIO DR

BING CROSBY
BLVD

SAN RODOLFO
DR

VI
A
DE

M A
YA

VI
A
DE

L CER R IT
O

CA
LA
IS

DR

LA
 N
OR
IA

ME

SA NORTE

DR
CAMINITO STELLA

DELL ST LOMA LARGA
DR

CAMINO
DEL

MAR
SOUTH LN

ECLIPSE RD

CAMINI
TO VIST

A LUJO

CANDY LN

BELLVI S T

A
DR

CA
MI

NI
TO

SA
NT
AL
UZ

W

LAS CU ES

TA
S

SAN ANDRES DR

AL
OH

A 
DR

SEA VILLAGE

DR

WO
TA

N 
DR

OC
EA

NI
C 

DRNA
RD

O 
RD

TOYON
MESA

CT

MANGO
DR

AR
CA

DI
A 

RD

LUS ARDI CR
EE
K
LN

SAN
DIEGUITO DR

RIO VISTA
RD

INTERSTATE
5
RAMP

L A

EN
TRADA

EMERALD LN

ELIJAH CT

CIRCO
DIEGUENO

RD

LAS PLANIDERAS

CA
L L

E
DI

EG
UE
NO

LU
NA

DE MIEL

MARSOLAN
AVE

SAN
TA

QUETA

AVENIDA
ALONDRA

SA
GE

CA
NYON

DR

PAS O

DE
L
SO
L

S CEDROS AVE

EL ARCO IRIS

AVENIDA ALTERAS

L
A

M

ANTANZA

TORRIN GT
ON

S T

CHURC
HILL

DOWNS

EL APAJO

RA

NC
HO

DE
L
SOL

WAY

VIS TA DE FORTUNA

CA
MI
NI
TO

S

AR
AGO

SS
A

EL MIRADOR

HOLMW

OOD
LN

ARTESIAN
SP RING

RD

PRIVATE DRWY

DEL MAR MESA RD

CAMIN
ITO

SANTO TOMAS

EN
TR
AD
A
DE

LU
Z W

C

OLONY TER

P RI
VA

TE DR WY

SAN

TA
CE
CE

LIA

LOMA
VER

DE DR

INTERSTATE
5
RAMP

CAMINO DE

LA
DO
RA

PRIVATE D
R

INTERSTATE
5

SB
ON

RAMP

ILUMINADO

CALLE DEL

ALCAZAR

IN
TE

RS
TA

TE
5
NB

OF
F

RA
MP

STA
TE

ROU
TE

56
EB

ON
RAM

P

CALZADA DEL BOSQUE

EL ACEB
O

PASEO VALEN
CIA

CALLE CAR L
A

SA

NT
A DOMINGA

U N NAM
ED ST

RANCHO VALENCIA DR

IN
TE
RS
TA
TE

5
SB

OF
F

RA
MP

SA
NTA ESTELLA

UNNAMED ST

PRI
VATE DRW

Y

EL
PUENTE

CA
RM
EL

CA

NY
ON

RD

LA
MA
DR
ES

EL
VA

RE
PO

SA
AL TA

ARTESIAN
RIDGE

ROAD

W
SO

LANA CIR

STATE
ROUTE

56 EB OFF
RAMP

PRIV
A

TE ST

S PY GLASS LN

DALIA DR

STA
TE

ROU
TE

56
WB

ON
RAM

P

S COAST HIGHWAY 101

SE
NDERO ANG EL I

CA

VIA LAGO AZUL

FR
AN
ZE

N
FA

R M
RD

RUN OF THE KNOLLS

CLUBHOUSE DR

NORTH LN

VI
A DE SINNARD

PUERTA DEL SOL

SEABRIGHT
LN

THE LANDING
WAY

LA
BR
IS
A

LA
VALLE PLATEADA

RANCHO

LAS BRISAS TRL

LITTLE

MCGONIGLE
RANCH

RD

DEL DIOS HWY

SAN DIEGUITO RD

111030

111040

110510

110610

110620

110640

110680

110690

110780

110790110820

110900

110910

110930

110940

111150

110960

110970

110980

111070

413880

413900

436630
436660436680

436700

436720

436710

436980

436750

436780

436790

436800

436810

436820

436830

111080

111100

111110
111120

111140

115570

111260

111300

111370

111390

111400

111410

111420

115000

115610

115130

115140

115170

115180

115190

115200
115210

115220

115250

115260

115460

115480

115500

115650

115550

412790

412800

412810

413770

413780

413810

413820

413830

412960

413840

413850

413860

413870

413910

413930

413950

413960

413970

413980

413990

414000

414010

414030

414040

414060

414070

435450

436990

435240

435420

115620

435090

435360

413760

110800

435780

414210

115050

435620

413460

413480
413490 413530

413550

414130

412840
412910

413430

413570

414120

414170

414180

414190

111430

418200

418210

418220

418300

418310

418400

418410

418420

418500

418510

418520

435530

436340

436350

436370
436380

436390

436900

436940

110920

115290

111350

111000

414050

414080

436650

436690

436560

111560

111550

111520

115630

115640
115510

115680

Legend
Precinct_Tracts (SFID 2016-1)

Precinct_Tracts

SanGIS Parcels

SOLANA BEACH SCHOOL DISTRICT
VOTER PRECINCTS IN SFID No. 2016-1 

VICINITY MAP

0 3015 Miles
8/22/161:20,750

Pacific  O
cean



Solana Beach School District �� 

Taxpayer Protections: The following taxpayer protections are specifically provided in this 
Bond Measure and by law:  

• Bond funds shall be used only for the school facilities projects identified herein, and not
for any other purpose. �

• As required by law, an Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee shall oversee
expenditures of bond funds, and related matters, and shall report to the Board of
Education and communicate with the public on such expenditures. �

• As required by law, the School District shall conduct annual financial audits and
performance audits (using independent auditors) for all bond funds. �

• Bond Funds shall not be used for teacher or non-construction related administrator
salaries or other non-construction related operating expenses.” �



Solana Beach School District �� 

Exhibit C 
1. 2018-19 Independent Audit Report















6









6



6



6



6



6



6



66



6



6



6









Solana Beach School District ICOC Agenda • 03/21/18 • Page 68 

Exhibit D 
1. Certification of Expenses and Prevailing Wage

All workers employed on public works projects must be paid the prevailing wage
determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, according to the
type of work and location of the project. The prevailing wage rates are usually based on
rates specified in collective bargaining agreements.

Public works in general means:
• Construction, alteration, demolition, installation, or repair work done under

contract and paid in whole or in part out of public funds.
• It can include preconstruction and post-construction activities related to a public

works project.
• For a full definition of public works refer to Labor Code section 1720.

Exception: Project inspectors approved by the Division of State Architect (DSA) are 
subject to registration; however, there is no craft that claims this work, and prevailing 
wages are not required for DSA-approved project inspectors on Public Works. 

Solana Beach School District strictly adheres to the prevailing wage requirement for all 
public works projects. 



Review and approval of the 2018-19 Annual Report presentation to the Solana
Beach School District Board of Education by the Independent Citizens’ Oversight
Sub-Committee

ITEM:

The 2018-19 Annual Report presentation outlines information contained in the Annual Report regarding
membership of the Solana Beach School District Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee (ICOC), the
role of the Committee, projects, priorities, and financial information on District projects funded by Measure
JJ.

Attachment: Independent Citizens’ Oversight Sub-Committee 2018-19 Annual Report Presentation

DESCRIPTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

It is recommended that the Committee review and approve the 2018-19 Annual Report presentation to the
Solana Beach School District Board of Education by the Independent Citizens’ Oversight Sub-Committee.

RECOMMENDATION:

MEETING DATE:

5058

3/25/2020

AGENDA ITEM: 7C

Action
Consent
First Reading
Information
Presentation
Public Hearing
Roll Call Vote Required
Report

MOVED BY:  _____________________________ SECONDED BY:  _____________________________



Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee
Annual Report

2018-19

Ellis Webster
75



ICOC Membership

Michael Casey, Senior Citizens’ Organization Representative

Jill Epstein, Parent of Enrolled SBSD Student Representative

Laurel Graziano, Business Community Representative

Katherine Kousser, Parent-Teacher Organization Representative

Laura Lemos, Community At Large

Michelle Sahagian, Community At Large

Vacancy created 2/27/2020

6



ICOC Responsibilities

The ICOC is required to advise the public on the District’s compliance with the 
requirements of Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) of the California Constitution, 
including: 

• Expenditure of bond funds only for the construction, reconstruction,
rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities;

• Prohibiting the expenditure of bond funds for any teacher or administrative
salaries or other school operating expenses;

• Requiring annual independent performance audits to ensure that bond funds have
been expended only on the specific projects listed;

• Requiring annual independent financial audits of the proceeds from the sale of
the bonds until all those proceeds have been expended for the school facilities
projects.



ICOC Sub-Committees

• Annual Report Committee

• Budget/Financials Committee

• Programs Committee



JJ Bonds

Building on the commitment from the voters in November 
2016, the District has authority to issue $105,000,000 in 
general obligation bonds. 

In spring 2017, the District issued $48,780,000 in general 
obligation bonds for Measure JJ projects. In spring 2019, 
the District issued $54,750,000 in general obligation bonds 
for Measure JJ projects. 

The cost of issuance for expenditures through June 2019 
was $1,470,000.



Priority Projects



Solana Pacific – Solar Array $1.003M



Solana Highlands – Modernization $8.446M



Skyline – New School Construction $45.226M
On-Going Beautification



Solana Vista – New School Construction 
Planning and Community Outreach



On-Going District Efforts 
in Support of Measure JJ

• Superintendent's Facilities Task Force that supports the 
Long Range Facilities Planning Efforts

• Funding from other District sources in support of District 
projects

• Leveraging CFD Funds
• Deferred Maintenance Efforts
• Design Team meetings for Solana Vista
• Design Team meetings for Solana Santa Fe
• Community engagement for Solana Vista
• Community engagement for Solana Santa Fe 

Ellis Webster
85



Economic Factors that Influence
the Cost of School Construction

Costs of Construction, Labor, and Materials; Availability 
of Skilled Labor; Potential Weather Events; State and 
Federal Emergencies; and other factors may impact 
construction costs and the scope of projects to be 
completed using Measure JJ funds.

Ellis Webster
86



ICOC Audit Review

“We tested approximately $10.2 million of the current year 
expenditures (approximately 93%) for validity, allowability 
and accuracy and concluded that the sampled 
expenditures were in compliance with the terms of 
Measure JJ ballot language, the district approved facilities 
plan and applicable state laws and regulations.”



ICOC Audit Review

“There were no personnel costs charged to the Measure JJ 
Bond Building Fund during the year ended June 30, 2019.”



ICOC Audit Review

“There were no findings or recommendations related to 
the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019.”

“There were no findings or recommendations related to 
the local schools construction bonds for the year ended 
June 30, 2019.”



Questions?



Information on the Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee internal business

ITEM:

Solana Beach School District staff, along with Committee members, will discuss internal business including:

 Submission of Form 700;
 Letters to the Editor; and,
 Update on Sub-committee work.

DESCRIPTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

For information and discussion only.
RECOMMENDATION:

MEETING DATE:

5063

3/25/2020

AGENDA ITEM: 8A

Action
Consent
First Reading
Information
Presentation
Public Hearing
Roll Call Vote Required
Report

MOVED BY:  _____________________________ SECONDED BY:  _____________________________



Presentation of the Measure JJ Capital Programs projects and timeline

ITEM:

Solana Beach School District staff will present information on items including:

 Measure JJ project status; and,
 Solana Beach School District Capital Projects list.

Attachment: Solana Beach School District Measure JJ Projects List

DESCRIPTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

For information and discussion only.
RECOMMENDATION:

MEETING DATE:

5064

3/25/2020

AGENDA ITEM: 8B

Action
Consent
First Reading
Information
Presentation
Public Hearing
Roll Call Vote Required
Report

MOVED BY:  _____________________________ SECONDED BY:  _____________________________



November 2016 Election-
Voter Approval of Measure 

JJ

Spring 2017-
First Bond Issuance 

Issuance A- $48,780,000

Summer 2017
Solana Pacific School Solar Project- 

Installation of Parking Lot Solar Arrays
Budgeted $1,120,000- Actuals $1,003,053.69

Summer 2018
Carmel Creek School HVAC Replacement 

Project- 41 HVAC Units
Prop 39 Reimbursable Funds- $388,052.58

May 2017- December 2021
Solana Vista School Reconstruction Project

Budgeted $40,000,000 - Underway - Board Approved 11/2019 From $35,000,000

I
s
s
u
a
n
c
e

A

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s

December 2015-December 2018
Skyline School Reconstruction Project

Budgeted $40,000,000- Actuals $44,990,000

May 2016- Novemebr 2017
Solana Highlands School Modernization Project

Budgeted $5,000,000- Actuals $8,308,487 
Prop 39 Reimbursable Funds- $101,822.42 14 HVAC Units

October 2016- June 2018
Earl Warren Middle School Interim Campus

Budgeted $200,000- Actuals $817,621.37

September 2016- December 2017
Solana Santa Fe School Shade Project- Installation of One Shade Structure

Budgeted $48,000- Actuals $81,236.93

October 2016- July 2017
Solana Vista School Shade Project- Installation of Two Shade Structures

Budgeted $68,000- Actuals $59,974.56

Solana Beach School District Measure JJ Projects List
2015 2016 2017 2018



2023 2024
Spring 2019

Second Bond Issuance
Issuance B- $54,750,000

* Includes Escalation calculation November 2019

Summer 2021 - December  2023
Solana Pacific School Enhancements

Budgeted: $2,401,144 (Board Presentation 11/19)

Summer 2021- December  2023
Carmel Creek School Modernization Project - Planning (2021-22)

Carmel Creek School Modernization Project - Work (2023)
Budgeted $3,059,618* - In Pipeline (Board Presentation 11/19)

May 2017- December 2021
Solana Vista School Reconstruction Project

Budgeted $40,000,000 - Underway - Board Approved 11/2019 From $35,000,000

I
s
s
u
a
n
c
e

B

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s

February 2019- December 2021
Solana Santa Fe School Modernization/Expansion Project

Budgeted $16,200,000* (Board Presentation 11/19)  - In Planning - includes $4,500,000 CFD Crosby 2000-1

Solana Beach School District Measure JJ Projects List
2019 2020 2021 2022 TBD Projects



Information regarding Measure JJ financial reports

ITEM:

Solana Beach School District staff will present information on items including:

Consolidated Cash Flow report;
Project Budget Aging report;
Budget Status report; and,
Consolidated Contract Summary report.

DESCRIPTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

For information and discussion only.
RECOMMENDATION:

MEETING DATE:

5065

3/25/2020

AGENDA ITEM: 8C

Action
Consent
First Reading
Information
Presentation
Public Hearing
Roll Call Vote Required
Report

MOVED BY:  _____________________________ SECONDED BY:  _____________________________

5



Solana Beach School District Printed 3/17/20

Budget Status Report
Budget versus Commitments and Expenditures

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 1 of 1

 Program - Management

Expense Category/Object Code/Contract Name  Initial Budget 
 Approved Budget 

Changes  Total Budget  Initial AMT  Change AMT  Total Commitments 
 % Budget 
Commited 

 Remaining Against 
Budget  Paid  In Process for PMT  Total Expenditures 

 % Commited 
Spent 

 Remaining Against 
Commited 

 % Budget 
Spent 

 Remaining Against 
Budget 

B - Planning
5800-078 - Planning Software Total 170,000           170,000           90,000 90,000 52.9% 80,000 - 90,000 90,000 100.0% - 52.9% 80,000 

170,000           170,000           90,000             90,000             52.9% 80,000             - 90,000 90,000             100.0% - 52.9% 80,000             

C - Construction
6200-005 - Main Construction Contractor Total - - - - - - - - - - 

- - - - - - - - - - 

Totals 170,000           170,000           90,000             90,000             52.9% 80,000             - 90,000 90,000             100.0% - 52.9% 80,000             

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 

6



Printed: 3/17/20Solana Beach School District

© Colbi Technologies, Inc. Page 1 of 1 Consolidated Contract Summary

Consolidated Contract Summary Account-Ability
Contract Status Summaries by Project

School Name - Project Name Contract Name Contract Date C W M Object Code Initial AMT Changes
Current Contract 

AMT
Expenditures & 

Retentions
Remaining Balance Pending Changes

Grand Total 90,000           - 90,000 90,000           - - 
 Program - Management Total 90,000           - 90,000           90,000           - - 
 Program - Management Colbi Technologies, 05/19/17 B 5800-078 50,000           - 50,000           50,000           - - 
 Program - Management Colbi Technologies, QB Year 2 07/01/18 B 5800-078 10,000           - 10,000           10,000           - - 
 Program - Management Colbi Technologies, Year 2 04/01/18 B 5800-078 20,000           - 20,000           20,000           - - 
 Program - Management Colbi Technologies-QB 05/19/17 B 5800-078 10,000           - 10,000           10,000           - - 



Printed: 3/17/20Solana Beach School District

© Colbi Technologies, Inc. Page 1 of 1 Aging Report

Solana Vista - New School/Recon
Project Budget Aging Report Project Aging
Working Budget (Working Budget) Actual Actual

Code Category - Item Budget FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 <

Funding Sources

State State 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Local Local 40,000,000 2,010 187,402 294,001 1,400,000 31,600,000 6,516,587
21-39 Building Fund 40,000,000 2,010 187,402 294,001 1,400,000 31,600,000 6,516,587

40,000,000 2,010 187,402 294,001 1,400,000 31,600,000 6,516,587
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------
TOTAL FUNDING 40,000,000 2,010 187,402 294,001 1,400,000 31,600,000 6,516,587
Expenditures

A Site Costs 379,000 750 500 22,775 15,250 312,225 27,500
6200-002 Relocation Expenses 150,000 0 0 0 0 130,000 20,000

70,000 0 0 0 0 60,000 10,000
80,000 0 0 0 0 70,000 10,000

6200-006 Surveying Costs 4,000 0 0 0 4,000 0 0
4,000 0 0 0 4,000 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6200-202 Hazard Waste Studies & Fees 75,000 0 0 22,775 10,000 42,225 0

75,000 0 0 22,775 10,000 42,225 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6200-203 Other Costs - Site 150,000 750 500 0 1,250 140,000 7,500
150,000 750 500 0 1,250 140,000 7,500

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Planning Costs 2,431,000 1,260 172,877 271,200 1,139,800 579,500 266,363
6200-003 Architect / Engineering Fees 1,704,800 0 160,594 222,469 982,331 250,000 89,406

1,704,800 0 160,594 222,469 982,331 250,000 89,406
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6200-004 DSA Fees 350,000 0 0 0 50,000 175,000 125,000
350,000 0 0 0 50,000 175,000 125,000

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6200-012 Consultant 175,000 0 11,284 48,731 76,269 20,000 18,716

175,000 0 11,284 48,731 76,269 20,000 18,716
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6200-204 CDE Fees 50,000 0 0 0 25,000 14,500 10,500
50,000 0 0 0 25,000 14,500 10,500

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6200-206 Other Costs - Planning 150,000 1,260 1,000 0 5,000 120,000 22,740

150,000 1,260 1,000 0 5,000 120,000 22,740
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5800-003 Advertising 1,200 0 0 0 1,200 0 0
1,200 0 0 0 1,200 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

C Construction Costs 34,005,000 0 0 0 130,000 29,755,000 4,120,000
6200-005 Main Construction Contractor 33,000,000 0 0 0 100,000 29,000,000 3,900,000

33,000,000 0 0 0 100,000 29,000,000 3,900,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6200-207 Construction Management Fees 1,000,000 0 0 0 30,000 750,000 220,000
1,000,000 0 0 0 30,000 750,000 220,000

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6200-210 Other Costs - Construction 5,000 0 0 0 0 5,000 0

5,000 0 0 0 0 5,000 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

D Construction Testing Costs 300,000 0 14,025 0 12,975 248,000 25,000
6200-010 Construction Tests 300,000 0 14,025 0 12,975 248,000 25,000

300,000 0 14,025 0 12,975 248,000 25,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

E Construction Inspection Costs 350,000 0 0 0 0 300,000 50,000
6200-050 Construction Inspections 350,000 0 0 0 0 300,000 50,000

350,000 0 0 0 0 300,000 50,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

F Furniture & Equipment Costs 940,000 0 0 26 0 365,000 574,974
4300-000 Materials and Supplies 425,000 0 0 0 0 150,000 275,000

425,000 0 0 0 0 150,000 275,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4400-000 Furniture and Equipment ($500 - $5,000) 400,000 0 0 26 0 100,000 299,974
400,000 0 0 26 0 100,000 299,974

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6400-000 Furniture and Equipment (Above $5,000) 115,000 0 0 0 0 115,000 0

115,000 0 0 0 0 115,000 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

G Project Contingency 1,595,000 0 0 0 101,975 40,275 1,452,750
6999-000 Project Contingencies 1,595,000 0 0 0 101,975 40,275 1,452,750

Transfer to Site and Planning Costs 1,595,000 0 0 0 101,975 40,275 1,452,750
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 40,000,000 2,010 187,402 294,001 1,400,000 31,600,000 6,516,587

ENDING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Budget
Site Cost 379,000 1%
Soft Cost 4,081,000 10%

Hard Cost 33,945,000 85%
Contingency 1,595,000 4%

============
Total Cost 40,000,000 100%

86% Hard Cost (w/o Site)
4% Contingency (w/o Site)

BUDGET NOTES



Solana Beach School District Printed 3/17/20

Budget Status Report
Budget versus Commitments and Expenditures

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 1 of 1

Solana Vista - New School/Recon

Expense Category/Object Code/Contract Name  Initial Budget 
 Approved Budget 

Changes 
 Total Budget  Initial AMT  Change AMT  Total Commitments 

 % Budget 
Commited 

 Remaining Against 
Budget 

 Paid  In Process for PMT  Total Expenditures 
 % Commited 

Spent 
 Remaining Against 

Commited 
 % Budget 

Spent 
 Remaining Against 

Budget 

A - Site
6200-002 - Relocation Expenses Total 100,000           50,000 150,000           - - - 0.0% 150,000           - - - - 0.0% 150,000           

6200-006 - Surveying Costs Total 4,000 - 4,000 - - - 0.0% 4,000 - - - - 0.0% 4,000 

6200-202 - Hazard Waste Studies & Fees Total - 75,000 75,000 26,725 - 26,725 35.6% 48,275 - 22,775 22,775 85.2% 3,950 30.4% 52,225 

6200-203 - Other Costs - Site Total 150,000           - 150,000 5,057 - 5,057 3.4% 144,943           - 1,250 1,250 24.7% 3,807 0.8% 148,750           

254,000           125,000           379,000           31,782             - 31,782 8.4% 347,218           - 24,025 24,025             75.6% 7,757 6.3% 354,975           

B - Planning
5800-003 - Advertising Total 1,200 - 1,200 - - - 0.0% 1,200 - - - - 0.0% 1,200 

6200-003 - Architect / Engineering Fees Total 1,500,000        204,800           1,704,800        1,412,500        - 1,412,500 82.9% 292,300           - 958,650 958,650           67.9% 453,850           56.2% 746,150           

6200-004 - DSA Fees Total 250,000           100,000           350,000           - - - 0.0% 350,000           - - - - 0.0% 350,000           

6200-012 - Consultant Total 175,000           - 175,000 197,260           - 197,260 112.7% (22,260)            - 87,400 87,400 44.3% 109,860           49.9% 87,600 

6200-204 - CDE Fees Total 25,000 25,000 50,000 - - - 0.0% 50,000 - - - - 0.0% 50,000 

6200-206 - Other Costs - Planning Total 300,000           (150,000)          150,000           1,260 - 1,260 0.8% 148,740           - 1,260 1,260 100.0% - 0.8% 148,740           

2,251,200        179,800           2,431,000        1,611,020        - 1,611,020 66.3% 819,980           - 1,047,310 1,047,310        65.0% 563,710           43.1% 1,383,690        

C - Construction
6200-005 - Main Construction Contractor Total 25,700,000      7,300,000        33,000,000      - - - 0.0% 33,000,000      - - - - 0.0% 33,000,000      

6200-207 - Construction Management Fees Total - 1,000,000 1,000,000        - - - 0.0% 1,000,000        - - - - 0.0% 1,000,000        

6200-208 - Demoliton Total 1,000,000        (1,000,000)       - - - - - - - - - - 

6200-210 - Other Costs - Construction Total 200,000           (195,000)          5,000 - - - 0.0% 5,000 - - - - 0.0% 5,000 

26,900,000      7,105,000        34,005,000      - - - 0.0% 34,005,000      - - - - 0.0% 34,005,000      

D - Testing
6200-010 - Construction Tests Total 400,000           (100,000)          300,000           16,500 10,500 27,000 9.0% 273,000           - 27,000 27,000 100.0% - 9.0% 273,000           

400,000           (100,000)          300,000           16,500             10,500             27,000             9.0% 273,000           - 27,000 27,000             100.0% - 9.0% 273,000           

E - Inspection
6200-050 - Construction Inspections Total 450,000           (100,000)          350,000           - - - 0.0% 350,000           - - - - 0.0% 350,000           

450,000           (100,000)          350,000           - - - 0.0% 350,000           - - - - 0.0% 350,000           

F - Furniture & Equipment
4300-000 - Materials and Supplies Total 735,000           (310,000)          425,000           - - - 0.0% 425,000           - - - - 0.0% 425,000           

4400-000 - Furniture and Equipment ($500 - $5,000) Total 700,000           (300,000)          400,000           26 - 26 0.0% 399,974           - 26 26 100.0% - 0.0% 399,974           

6400-000 - Furniture and Equipment (Above $5,000) Total 250,000           (135,000)          115,000           - - - 0.0% 115,000           - - - - 0.0% 115,000           

1,685,000        (745,000)          940,000           26 - 26 0.0% 939,974           - 26 26 100.0% - 0.0% 939,974           

G - Project Contingency
6999-000 - Project Contingencies Total 3,059,800        (1,464,800)       1,595,000        

3,059,800        (1,464,800)       1,595,000        

Totals 35,000,000      5,000,000        40,000,000      1,659,327        10,500             1,669,827        4.2% 38,330,173      - 1,098,361 1,098,361        65.8% 571,467           2.7% 38,901,639      

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 



Printed: 3/17/20Solana Beach School District

© Colbi Technologies, Inc. Page 1 of 1 Consolidated Contract Summary

Consolidated Contract Summary Account-Ability
Contract Status Summaries by Project

School Name - Project Name Contract Name Contract Date C W M Object Code Initial AMT Changes
Current Contract 

AMT

Expenditures & 

Retentions
Remaining Balance Pending Changes

Grand Total 1,659,327       10,500           1,669,827       1,098,361       571,467         - 

Solana Vista - New School/Recon Total 1,659,327       10,500           1,669,827       1,098,361       571,467         - 

Solana Vista - New School/Recon TC Life Safety 08/01/18 F 4400-000 26 - 26 26 - - 
Solana Vista - New School/Recon Alpha Studio Design 05/19/17 B 6200-003 1,412,500       - 1,412,500       958,650         453,850         - 
Solana Vista - New School/Recon CTE Inc 05/24/18 D 6200-010 16,500           10,500           27,000           27,000           - - 
Solana Vista - New School/Recon Placeworks 2800 03/01/18 B 6200-012 98,315           - 98,315           77,404           20,911           - 
Solana Vista - New School/Recon Placeworks 4600 09/18/19 B 6200-012 33,945           - 33,945           1,996 31,949           - 
Solana Vista - New School/Recon Randall Lamb 09/13/19 B 6200-012 65,000           - 65,000           8,000 57,000           - 
Solana Vista - New School/Recon Western Envirn. 06/29/18 A 6200-202 26,725           - 26,725           22,775           3,950 - 
Solana Vista - New School/Recon Chicago Title Company 06/01/17 A 6200-203 750 - 750 750 - - 
Solana Vista - New School/Recon SDG&E 09/25/19 A 6200-203 3,807 - 3,807 - 3,807 - 
Solana Vista - New School/Recon SFID 05/01/18 A 6200-203 500 - 500 500 - - 
Solana Vista - New School/Recon Telacu 10/13/16 B 6200-206 1,260 - 1,260 1,260 - - 



Printed: 3/17/20Solana Beach School District

© Colbi Technologies, Inc. Page 1 of 1 Aging Report

Solana Santa Fe - Mod/Expansion
Project Budget Aging Report Project Aging
Working Budget (Working Budget)

Code Category - Item Budget FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 22-23 <

Funding Sources

State State 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Local Local 14,418,763 0 0 144,188 1,672,225 7,314,072 5,288,278
21-39 Building Fund 9,918,763 0 0 144,188 1,672,225 4,814,072 3,288,278

9,918,763 0 0 144,188 1,672,225 4,814,072 3,288,278
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

49-02 Crosby CFD 4,500,000 0 0 0 0 2,500,000 2,000,000
4,500,000 0 0 0 0 2,500,000 2,000,000

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------

TOTAL FUNDING 14,418,763 0 0 144,188 1,672,225 7,314,072 5,288,278
Expenditures

A Site Costs 297,188 0 0 27,188 30,000 137,500 102,500
6200-002 Relocation Expenses 100,000 0 0 0 0 50,000 50,000

100,000 0 0 0 0 50,000 50,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6200-006 Surveying Costs 60,000 0 0 0 30,000 20,000 10,000
60,000 0 0 0 30,000 20,000 10,000

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6200-202 Hazard Waste Studies & Fees 60,000 0 0 0 0 30,000 30,000

60,000 0 0 0 0 30,000 30,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6200-203 Other Costs - Site 77,188 0 0 27,188 0 37,500 12,500
77,188 0 0 27,188 0 37,500 12,500

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Planning Costs 1,480,930 0 0 117,000 920,000 367,930 76,000
6200-003 Architect / Engineering Fees 1,200,000 0 0 117,000 840,000 175,000 68,000

1,200,000 0 0 117,000 840,000 175,000 68,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6200-004 DSA Fees 72,093 0 0 0 0 72,093 0
72,093 0 0 0 0 72,093 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6200-012 Consultant 80,000 0 0 0 0 72,000 8,000

80,000 0 0 0 0 72,000 8,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6200-204 CDE Fees 28,837 0 0 0 0 28,837 0
28,837 0 0 0 0 28,837 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6200-206 Other Costs - Planning 100,000 0 0 0 80,000 20,000 0

100,000 0 0 0 80,000 20,000 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

C Construction Costs 11,140,000 0 0 0 700,000 5,447,997 4,992,003
6200-005 Main Construction Contractor 11,000,000 0 0 0 700,000 5,406,866 4,893,134

11,000,000 0 0 0 700,000 5,406,866 4,893,134
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6200-208 Demoliton 120,000 0 0 0 0 21,131 98,869
120,000 0 0 0 0 21,131 98,869

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6200-210 Other Costs - Construction 20,000 0 0 0 0 20,000 0

20,000 0 0 0 0 20,000 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

D Construction Testing Costs 200,000 0 0 0 4,225 145,000 50,775
6200-010 Construction Tests 200,000 0 0 0 4,225 145,000 50,775

200,000 0 0 0 4,225 145,000 50,775
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

E Construction Inspection Costs 150,000 0 0 0 13,000 100,000 37,000
6200-050 Construction Inspections 150,000 0 0 0 13,000 100,000 37,000

150,000 0 0 0 13,000 100,000 37,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

F Furniture & Equipment Costs 375,000 0 0 0 5,000 340,000 30,000
4300-000 Materials and Supplies 95,000 0 0 0 5,000 80,000 10,000

95,000 0 0 0 5,000 80,000 10,000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4400-000 Furniture and Equipment ($500 - $5,000) 100,000 0 0 0 0 80,000 20,000
100,000 0 0 0 0 80,000 20,000

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6400-000 Furniture and Equipment (Above $5,000) 180,000 0 0 0 0 180,000 0

180,000 0 0 0 0 180,000 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

G Project Contingency 775,645 0 0 0 0 775,645 0
6999-000 Project Contingencies 775,645 0 0 0 0 775,645 0

775,645 0 0 0 0 775,645 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------ ------------------
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 14,418,763 0 0 144,188 1,672,225 7,314,072 5,288,278

ENDING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Budget
Site Cost 297,188 2%
Soft Cost 1,830,930 13%

Hard Cost 11,515,000 80%
Contingency 775,645 5%

============
Total Cost 14,418,763 100%

82% Hard Cost (w/o Site)
5% Contingency (w/o Site)

BUDGET NOTES



Solana Beach School District Printed 3/17/20

Budget Status Report
Budget versus Commitments and Expenditures

Colbi Technologies Inc. (c) Page 1 of 1

Solana Santa Fe - Mod/Expansion

Expense Category/Object Code/Contract Name  Initial Budget 
 Approved Budget 

Changes 
 Total Budget  Initial AMT  Change AMT  Total Commitments 

 % Budget 
Commited 

 Remaining Against 
Budget 

 Paid  In Process for PMT  Total Expenditures 
 % Commited 

Spent 
 Remaining Against 

Commited 
 % Budget 

Spent 
 Remaining Against 

Budget 

A - Site
6200-002 - Relocation Expenses Total 100,000           100,000           - - 0.0% 100,000           - - - - 0.0% 100,000           

6200-006 - Surveying Costs Total 60,000 60,000 11,000 11,000 18.3% 49,000 - 11,000 11,000 100.0% - 18.3% 49,000 

6200-202 - Hazard Waste Studies & Fees Total 60,000 60,000 - - 0.0% 60,000 - - - - 0.0% 60,000 

6200-203 - Other Costs - Site Total 77,188 77,188 - - 0.0% 77,188 - - - - 0.0% 77,188 

297,188           297,188           11,000             11,000             3.7% 286,188           - 11,000 11,000             100.0% - 3.7% 286,188           

B - Planning
6200-003 - Architect / Engineering Fees Total 1,200,000        1,200,000        115,000           115,000           9.6% 1,085,000        - 89,246 89,246 77.6% 25,754 7.4% 1,110,754        

6200-004 - DSA Fees Total 72,093 72,093 - - 0.0% 72,093 - - - - 0.0% 72,093 

6200-012 - Consultant Total 80,000 80,000 - - 0.0% 80,000 - - - - 0.0% 80,000 

6200-204 - CDE Fees Total 28,837 28,837 - - 0.0% 28,837 - - - - 0.0% 28,837 

6200-206 - Other Costs - Planning Total 100,000           100,000           - - 0.0% 100,000           - - - - 0.0% 100,000           

1,480,930        1,480,930        115,000           115,000           7.8% 1,365,930        - 89,246 89,246             77.6% 25,754             6.0% 1,391,684        

C - Construction
6200-005 - Main Construction Contractor Total 11,000,000      11,000,000      - - 0.0% 11,000,000      - - - - 0.0% 11,000,000      

6200-208 - Demoliton Total 120,000           120,000           - - 0.0% 120,000           - - - - 0.0% 120,000           

6200-210 - Other Costs - Construction Total 20,000 20,000 - - 0.0% 20,000 - - - - 0.0% 20,000 

11,140,000      11,140,000      - - 0.0% 11,140,000      - - - - 0.0% 11,140,000      

D - Testing
6200-010 - Construction Tests Total 200,000           200,000           - - 0.0% 200,000           - - - - 0.0% 200,000           

200,000           200,000           - - 0.0% 200,000           - - - - 0.0% 200,000           

E - Inspection
6200-050 - Construction Inspections Total 150,000           150,000           - - 0.0% 150,000           - - - - 0.0% 150,000           

150,000           150,000           - - 0.0% 150,000           - - - - 0.0% 150,000           

F - Furniture & Equipment
4300-000 - Materials and Supplies Total 95,000 95,000 - - 0.0% 95,000 - - - - 0.0% 95,000 

4400-000 - Furniture and Equipment ($500 - $5,000) Total 100,000           100,000           - - 0.0% 100,000           - - - - 0.0% 100,000           

6400-000 - Furniture and Equipment (Above $5,000) Total 180,000           180,000           - - 0.0% 180,000           - - - - 0.0% 180,000           

375,000           375,000           - - 0.0% 375,000           - - - - 0.0% 375,000           

G - Project Contingency
6999-000 - Project Contingencies Total 775,645           775,645           

775,645           775,645           

Totals 14,418,763      14,418,763      126,000           126,000           0.9% 14,292,763      - 100,246 100,246           79.6% 25,754             0.7% 14,318,517      

 Budget  Commitments  Expenditures 



Printed: 3/17/20Solana Beach School District

© Colbi Technologies, Inc. Page 1 of 1 Consolidated Contract Summary

Consolidated Contract Summary Account-Ability
Contract Status Summaries by Project

School Name - Project Name Contract Name Contract Date C W M Object Code Initial AMT Changes Current Contract 
AMT

Expenditures & 
Retentions

Remaining Balance Pending Changes

Grand Total 126,000         - 126,000 100,246         25,754           - 
Solana Santa Fe - Mod/Expansion Total 126,000         - 126,000         100,246         25,754           - 
Solana Santa Fe - Mod/Expansion Lionakis 05/23/19 B 6200-003 115,000         - 115,000         89,246           25,754           - 
Solana Santa Fe - Mod/Expansion Pasco Laret 09/26/19 A 6200-006 11,000           - 11,000           11,000           - - 




